
Special Meeting Held By The Board of Adjustment of the Town of Ocean Ridge, Florida, 

to be Held in the Town Hall on Wednesday, February 11, 1998 at 8:30 AM. 

 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Barlage and roll call was answered by the 

following: 

 

 Robert Cunningham   Earl Jones 

 Barbara Souther   Luis Vinas 

                    Chairman Barlage 

 

III. Approval of Minutes of December 10, 1997 

 

Mr. Jones advised that he would like a correction included on page 6 which would note 

that the architect stated that the height of the wall would not be increased.   

 

Mr. Jones moved to approve the minutes as amended, seconded by Dr. Vinas. 

 

Motion carried – yea 5. 

 

IV. Variance Applications 

A. An application submitted by Bridges, Marsh & Assoc., 124 NE 5
th

 

Ave., Delray Beach, FL  33483, representing Paul Broadhead, 

6125 N Ocean Blvd., Ocean Ridge, FL  33435, requesting a 

variance from the provisions of the Land Development Code, 

Article III; Supplemental Regulations, Section 26-33; Fences, 

Walls, and Hedges, Paragraph (a); the height of walls may not 

exceed 4’ in the front or corner sideyard setbacks to permit 

construction of a 6’ high gate and posts on a corner sideyard 

setback of Anna St. located at the above described address or 

legally described as the SLY 21.72’ of Lot 10 & Lots 11 & 12, Blk 

3 and TH PT of Blk 10 LYG W of & Adj to & Abandoned Ocean 

Blvd. LYG BET in the Boynton Sub Amended Subdivision 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak read the variance request by title.  She stated that the architect was 

requesting a postponement as permitted in Section 26-233.  She added that the code 

required the postponed meeting take place within 60 days. 

 

Mr. Jones stated that he would like to request that better drawings of the south elevation 

be submitted for the postponed hearing.  He advised that the top of the wall is not 10’ as 

indicated in the drawings submitted.  Chairman Barlage concurred.  Town Clerk Hancsak 

advised that she would request that new drawings be submitted. 

 

 

 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HELD IN THE TOWN 

HALL ON WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 1998 AT 8:30 AM 

 2

Jim Leider, 6083 Old Ocean Blvd., advised that he was opposed to the position of the 

gate in regards to Anna St.  He stated that he had received a notification in the mail 

regarding the hearing and rearranged his schedule to attend.  He questioned why the 

applicant could not give the same consideration.  He stated that he wanted to discuss the 

issue. 

 

Chairman Barlage advised that the Board of Adjustment could not discuss the issue at 

this meeting as the applicant could not respond and reiterated that they have requested a 

postponement.   

 

Town Clerk Hancsak then received a phone call and advised that Mark Marsh would be 

able to attend the meeting at approximately 9:15 AM.  She stated that the Board could 

hear the second hearing while waiting for him to arrive.  The Board of Adjustment 

concurred that this would be a good idea. 

 

B. An application submitted by Mary Wydman, 6880 N Ocean Blvd. 

#9, Ocean Ridge, FL 33435, requesting a variance from the 

provisions of the Land Development Code, Article II, District 

Regulations, Section 26-10; Single-Family Residential Districts, 

Paragraph (e); RSF-Single Family Residential Property 

Development Regulations, Sub Paragraph (2)(c), minimum side 

corner yard setbacks, Sub Paragraph (5), maximum lot coverage 

shall be 35% of total lot area, and also Sub Paragraph (6), 

maximum floor area ratio (FAR) to permit construction of a 

combined 19’ X 26 ½’ master bedroom, bath and closet addition 

that would encroach a maximum of 11’ into the required 20’ side 

corner yard setback.  This request also exceeds the maximum 

permitted 36% FAR to 37.51% and maximum 35% lot coverage to 

37.51% located at the above described address or legally described 

as all of Lots F,G,H, and I, and that certain parcel marked “Not 

Included” lying between said Lots G & H, Plat of McCormick 

Mile, Add No. 1 (6880 N Ocean Blvd. #9) 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak read the variance request by title.  It was noted for the record that 

all fees had been paid and there had been no additional correspondence received.   

 

Being that the justification of application answers were supplied in one paragraph, Town 

Clerk Hancsak read requirements A-G as listed in the variance application and then read 

their answer.  They advised that the property has three substantial setbacks as a result of 

being built on the border of Island Drive and the Spanish River.  The justification further 

stated that the applicants were requesting the minimum variance that would allow the 

family to add a much needed master bedroom suite.  It concluded that due to the small 

amount of visibility to the property because of the 6’ masonry wall and dense 

landscaping, the addition would have minimal effect on any neighboring properties. 

 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HELD IN THE TOWN 

HALL ON WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 1998 AT 8:30 AM 

 3

Town Clerk Hancsak read the administrative comments from Town Manager Lanker.  He 

stated that the applicant’s property is the only one in the Maisonettes North which has the 

adjacent room needed to build an addition.  He advised that the addition would be almost 

although he did not recommend approval, if the variance were approved, it would be 

virtually free of impact to other citizens of Ocean Ridge. 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak advised that she had distributed to the Board members a copy of the 

minutes from the Ocean Maisonettes Board of Directors’ meeting which the applicant 

submitted.  The minutes reflect the Board of Directors’ approval of the proposed 

addition. 

 

Mary Lou Farr, manager of Ocean Ridge Management, was present at the request of the 

applicant.  She advised that the Wydman’s had the total approval of Ocean Ridge 

Management and of the neighboring residents. 

 

Mr. Jones advised that the justification of application typically provides a hardship for the 

variance.  He stated that no hardship was included in their justification.   

 

Mrs. Farr explained that Mrs. Wydman’s family will be increasing because her daughter 

is adopting a baby and will be visiting with great frequency. 

 

 Mr. Jones stated that the Wydman’s have a three bedroom home with only two people in 

residence.  He concluded that they should have one or two bedrooms vacant.  There was 

discussion between Town Manager Lanker and Mr. Jones as to the owner of the property 

between the wall and Island Dr.  He concluded that he would need to know who owns 

that property and the hardship of the applicant before he could vote on the issue. 

 

Chairman Barlage asked if the property line went to the wall to which Town Manager 

Lanker stated that he was not sure.  Mrs. Farr advised that she felt the property extended 

to the street, as that area is all maintained by the Maisonettes.  Town Manager Lanker 

stated that the survey shows that the property line does fall outside the wall. 

 

Chairman Barlage clarified that the addition would be approximately 6’ from the wall.  

Mrs. Souther questioned why anyone would want to be that close to a wall.  Mr. Jones 

explained that the window on the side of the addition would be farther up the wall and; 

therefore, one would not get the impression of being so close to the wall from the inside 

of the home.  Mr. Jones reiterated his concern that there was no hardship given for the 

variance. 

 

Mrs. Farr stated that the family wishes to accommodate their daughter and other guests 

who may visit. 

 

Mrs. Souther commented that it would have been helpful to know the sizes of the other 

bedrooms. 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HELD IN THE TOWN 

HALL ON WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 1998 AT 8:30 AM 

 4

Dr. Vinas advised that if other people were living in the home year round, he would 

consider that a hardship.  He stated that the variance was requesting to encroach into the 

setback by 9’ and would need a substantial hardship for him to approve. 

 

Chairman Barlage stated that the application was requesting a variance from many things 

such as setback, FAR, and lot coverage.  He advised that no other homes in the area that 

have the advantage of being able to add to their home.  Mrs. Farr stated that, if approved, 

it would not be the largest residence in the development.   

 

Town Manager Lanker stated that the Wydman’s could reapply after a year if the 

variance is denied or the Board of Adjustment could postpone the hearing until the 

applicant can be present to answer questions.  Town Clerk Hancsak added that the Board 

of Adjustment could also deny if they felt there was no hardship. 

 

Mr. Jones questioned why the applicant was not present to which Mrs. Farr explained that 

Mrs. Wydman was presently in Vietnam. 

 

Mr. Jones moved to deny the variance request, seconded by Dr. Vinas. 

 

Motion carried – yea 5. 

 

A. Application submitted by Bridges, Marsh & Assoc., representing 

Paul Broadhead, 6125 N Ocean Blvd. 

 

The variance request had already been read by title.  It was noted for the record that there 

was no additional correspondence and that all fees had been paid.   

 

Chairman Barlage and Town Clerk Hancsak read the justification of application.  The 

justification stated that the gates and posts would be similar to others on adjacent 

properties.  It stated that the variance would create an aesthetic continuity within the 

adjacent properties. 

 

Town Clerk Hancsak read the administrative comments from Town Manager Lanker.  

Town Manager Lanker advised that the wall bordering the property on Anna St. steps 

down in many locations with the natural grade preventing a very high structure on A1A.  

He advised that no other home in the same zoning district has a wall similar to this.  He 

added that because of the Broadhead’s concern over using their existing driveway during 

inclement weather, they feel another driveway gave them a solution and that this is the 

correct solution architecturally.  He concluded that the variance would create 

aesthetically pleasing results and he recommended approval. 

 

Mark Marsh, of Bridges, Marsh and Associates, advised that the applicant was requesting 

to install a new set of gates that would be consistent with other gates found on A1A.  He 

stated that the applicant intends to use this gate as an exit only from the property as 

exiting on A1A can be difficult for them at times. 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HELD IN THE TOWN 

HALL ON WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 1998 AT 8:30 AM 

 5

Curtis Meade, General Contractor, advised that Mr. Broadhead’s concern is that when 

there is a significant amount of rainfall, there is a tremendous collection of water at the 

existing exit.  He advised that he had spoken with Town Manager Lanker regarding 

various options for this problem including trench drains and this was found to be the best 

option due to the grade of the property. 

 

Mr. Jones stated that he had a problem with the drawing which shows that the wall is 7’ 

high on the northside of the gate and 6’ on the south side.  He advised that he had walked 

along the wall in that area and found that it only reached his hip which is well below 6’.  

Mr. Marsh explained that they were using measurements from when the wall was built 

ten years ago and stated that the highest point now might only be 9’4”.  He stated that it is 

not the applicants’ intent to build a 10’ wall, but to keep it where it is now with the 

highest point being in the southeast corner.  Mr. Jones clarified that on the drawing where 

it is shown to be 7’ is actually approximately 4’.   

 

Mr. Jones commented that the justification indicates the similarities to neighboring 

properties.  Mr. Marsh stated that a number of existing homes on A1A have gates that are 

above the 4’ allowed.  Mr. Jones advised that the entrance in the application would not be 

on A1A, but rather on Anna St.  He stated that the adjacent homes on Anna St. and Old 

Ocean Blvd. do not have gates that size. 

 

Mr. Jones questioned if the applicants were aware of the privacy they would be giving up 

as a result of the amount of vegetation that will have to be removed to install their gates.  

Mr. Meade stated that the Broadhead’s were aware of what would need to be removed in 

order to place the gates on Anna and added they planned on planting new vegetation. 

 

Mr. Jones inquired if anyone had done a traffic survey as motorists will not be expecting 

vehicles to be exiting from that area.  Mr. Marsh explained that the driveway would be 

placed far enough from the street so that the exiting driver will be able to pause to check 

for traffic. 

 

Mr. Jones asked if the applicant was the same resident who removed the swale.  Town 

Manager Lanker advised that the resident had beautified an area where there was a hole 

and an existing problem with drainage.  Mr. Jones commented that perhaps the applicant 

created the problem with the driveway.  Town Manager Lanker advised that the driveway 

is low and this is one option to help the situation.  Mr. Marsh advised that the driveway 

was installed to DOT standards and raising the driveway was not a viable option. 

 

Town Manager Lanker reminded the Board that the variance request was for the height of 

the gates and not for the driveway itself. 

 

Chairman Barlage asked if the utility pole would be a problem to which Mr. Meade 

replied that it would not.   

 

Chairman Barlage questioned if the gates would swing in to which Mr. Meade replied 

that they would swing out to the property line. 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HELD IN THE TOWN 

HALL ON WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 1998 AT 8:30 AM 

 6

 

Chairman Barlage commented that he did not like that the headlights would shine in to 

the guest house across the street when a car would exit from there.  He added that he also 

did not like that the foliage would be removed.  Mr. Marsh explained that the 

Broadhead’s still want their privacy and additional plantings would be installed. 

 

Chairman Barlage questioned the width of the gate to which Mr. Marsh explained that the 

approved gates would be 6’ wide and 6’ high. 

 

Mr. Cunningham asked if only a permit would be needed as opposed to a variance to 

install the driveway at that location to which Town Manager Lanker replied that a 

driveway would be allowed under the existing code.  Mr. Cunningham stated that 

Chairman Barlage’s concern over the headlights then should not be considered.   

 

Chairman Barlage stated that the impact on public welfare is not included in the variance 

request.  Town Clerk Hancsak reiterated that the driveway is not included in the variance, 

only the height of the gates.   

 

Mr. Marsh advised the Board that it is the intent to have the area look like a gated 

entrance and not a smaller service entrance.  He stated that he believed it would be better 

for those on Anna St. to have a more graceful and aesthetically pleasing gate. 

 

Dr. Vinas advised that he had a problem with each of the answers to the justification of 

application.  He advised that he believed the neighboring and adjacent homes to be those 

on Anna and not on A1A.  He stated that he believed this would be a special privilege 

and that raising the wall could be injurious to the surrounding properties.  Mr. Marsh 

explained that he believed A1A to be included as adjacent homeowners and that it would 

not be a special privilege as they are able to install the driveway according to the code.  

He added that the wall would not be increased in height from what it currently is.   

 

Mr. Marsh explained that they would like to retain the continuity of the neighborhood 

and service entrances detract from that look.  Mrs. Souther stated that she believed that 

smaller gates could be attractive and not resemble a service entrance. 

 

Chairman Barlage clarified that the cap of the wall does not count in the height.  Town 

Manager Lanker explained that the cap is included in the total height.  Mr. Marsh 

explained that if the Board approved 6’ including the cap, it would be acceptable. 

 

Mr. Jones stated that he did not see any reason for the wall to be higher than 4’ with the 

gates at a maximum height of 6’.  He advised that he would like to see the wall remain 

relative to the front of the home which has a low wall. 

 

 

 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HELD IN THE TOWN 

HALL ON WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 1998 AT 8:30 AM 

 7

Mr. Jones stated that the current step down pattern of the wall would not have to be 

changed if the application were approved at 4’.  He explained that the wall is actually 

below 4’.  Mr. Marsh stated that the owner would accept keeping the wall at 4’ adding 

that he would planned to add a significant amount of landscaping that would further 

camoflauge the wall.   

 

James Leider, 6083 Old Ocean Blvd., stated that he is concerned about the safety of this 

driveway.  He questioned if the driveway would be far enough from the intersection of 

Old Ocean Blvd. and Anna St..  He stated that the safety of the bikers and runners coming 

from the opposite direction in this area are bad enough without adding additional traffic 

from this driveway.   

 

Mr. Cunningham advised that the Board’s function was to decide on the variance strictly 

in regards to the size of gate and not the placement of the driveway.  Mr. Jones advised 

that he would like an opinion as to whether or not the driveway was far enough from the 

intersection of Old Ocean Blvd and Anna St..  Town Manager Lanker advised that the 

permit would be forwarded to the Town Atty before approval for an opinion on the 

driveway.  Mr. Jones suggested that approval only be given with the contingency that the 

driveway meets all other requirements.  

 

Christina D’Angelo, owner of a lot near the corner of Anna and N Ocean Blvd., stated 

that she did not believe the code would allow a driveway to be that close to the 

intersection.  She added that the safety hazard which would be created by this driveway is 

not a reasonable answer to a drainage problem. 

 

Chairman Barlage stated that he had a problem with the gate swinging out into the street.  

Mr. Cunningham explained that the gate is recessed so that they would only swing out to 

the wall. 

 

The Board then went into executive session. 

 

Mrs. Souther advised that she believed the size of the gate should be consistent with those 

on Anna St. and not A1A.  She stated that she would not approve the application for the 

gates to be 6’. 

 

Dr. Vinas reiterated that he had a problem with the justification of application adding that 

he felt the applicant manipulated the answers.  He stated that he was still concerned over 

the safety issue in regards to the placement of the driveway although that is not the 

decision before the Board.  He stated that he would not have a problem approving a 4’ 

wall and a 6’ gate if reviewed by the Town very carefully. 

 

Mr. Jones advised that he did not like the application adding that he would not approve 

any wall over 4’.  He stated that he would approve the gates at 6’.  He reiterated the 

safety issue as bikers and pedestrian traffic travels both ways in that area. 

 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HELD IN THE TOWN 

HALL ON WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 1998 AT 8:30 AM 

 8

Mr. Cunningham stated that  he would agree to the 4’ wall and 6’ gate.  He reiterated that 

the Board was only voting on the height issue and that it would be the responsibility of 

the owner to obtain the permit to install the driveway. 

 

Chairman Barlage stated that he and the public were not in favor of the position of the 

driveway even though that is not the issue before the Board.  He added that he believes it 

will eventually cause a problem.  He advised that if it were not approved, there would 

only be a wall and an area with the foliage removed for exiting the property.  He added 

that he would like their concern noted.  Town Clerk Hancsak clarified that his concern 

was that the driveway meets all the code requirements.  Town Manager Lanker assured 

the Board that the permit would be given to the Department of Public Safety and the 

Town Atty for opinions upon submission.  He added that  the Town could be liable if a 

permit were denied that did meet the code requirements.  He explained that it was his 

opinion that this corner was a bend in the road as opposed to an intersection, but added he 

would request a legal opinion on the matter due to it being one way. 

 

Mr. Leider stated that he did not believe the resident had a sufficient cause of hardship.  

He added that he did not believe the existing driveway could flood enough to disallow a 

vehicle from entering or exiting on A1A.  He advised that a 6’ gate when open would be 

in the line of sight of the driver exiting the property. 

 

Mrs. D’Angelo advised that she felt strongly that Old Ocean Blvd. and Anna St. was an 

intersection.  She added that the applicants could have a beautiful entrance even if it were 

moved farther from the above-mentioned intersection. 

 

Mr. Jones moved to deny the application as submitted, seconded by Mrs. Souther. 

 

Motion carried – yea 4 (Jones, Souther, Vinas, Barlage) 

                            nay 1 (Cunningham) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HELD IN THE TOWN 

HALL ON WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 1998 AT 8:30 AM 

 9

V. Adjournment 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 AM. 

 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Chairman Barlage 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Robert Cunningham 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Earl Jones 

Attest By: 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Barbara Souther 

________________________ 

Town Clerk  

 

       ___________________________ 

       Luis Vinas 

 


